
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

PLANNING PANEL
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not 
take place in a physical location 

Date: Wednesday, 16th September, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby        Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 August 2020 1 - 4

4. Schedule of Applications 

a) Application 4/19/2200/0O1 - Land at Midtown Farm, Morass Road, 
Beckermet

5 - 42 

Outline application for up to 24 dwellings with approval of access 
(resubmission).

b) Application 4/20/2123/0B1 - Park House Farm Wind Farm, Lowca, 
Whitehaven

43 - 64 

Section 73 Application for variation of Condition 2 of Planning 
Approval  4/98/0486/0 (Wind Farm) to enable extension of operational 
life until end of March 2030.

5. Schedule of Delegated Decisions 65 - 78

6. Planning Appeal Decision 79 - 82

7. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on Wednesday 14th 
October 2020 at 2:00pm. This will be a virtual meeting

Membership: Councillors Joan Hully (Chair), Doug Wilson (Deputy Chair), Jackie Bowman, 
Graham Calvin, Tom Higgins, Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Graham Minshaw, Brian O'Kane and Russell Studholme

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





PLANNING PANEL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 19 AUGUST 2020

Present: Councillors Joan Hully Doug Wilson, Jackie Bowman, Charles Maudling, 
Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, Graham Minshaw, Brian O'Kane and 
Russell Studholme

Officers: Nick Hayhurst (Planning Development Manager), Christopher Harrison 
(Principal Planning Officer), Michaela Peet (Assistant Solicitor), Clive Willoughby 
(Democratic Services Officer) and Rose Blaney (Electoral and Democratic 
Services Officer)

PP 20/42 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Graham Calvin and 
Tom Higgins.

PP 20/43 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

Councillor Russell Studholme declared a personal interest in Application 4b 
(4/19/2226/0O1 Land behind Castle Lea, Flatt Walks, Whitehaven) due to 
knowing the applicant.

PP 20/44 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 August 2020 

PP 20/44  Minutes of the meeting held on 5 August 2020 

Consideration was given to the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 August 2020. 

A vote was then taken by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 8 For, 0 Against and 1 Abstentions, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 August 2020 be signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

PP 20/45 Schedule of Applications 

The planning applications were taken in the following order.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



PP 20/46 Application 4/20/2194/0F1 - Land Adjacent to the Beacon Museum, 
West Strand, Whitehaven 

The application for the proposed relocation of the Mining Statue, currently 
located adjacent to Wellington Inn car park, to land adjacent to The Beacon 
Museum in support of Planning Permission 4/19/2016/0F1 (Erection of a 3 
storey building for use as a Coastal Activity Centre) was presented by the 
Planning Officer.

During discussion of this item, representation in objection was received from 
Ms H Berwick (on behalf of Whitehaven Social Welfare).

The Applicant’ Agent, Ms H Dockerty, then exercised her right to respond.

A vote was then taken, by way of a roll call. 

The result of the vote was 9 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions. 

RESOLVED – that the application be Approved.

PP 20/47 Application 4/19/2226/0O1 - Land behind Castle Lea, Flatt Walks, 
Whitehaven (Addendum Report) 

The addendum report was presented by the Planning Officer.

Following discussion, a vote was then taken by way of a roll call. 

On a vote of 6 For, 3 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:-

RESOLVED – that authority be delegated to the Planning and Place Manager to 
approve outline planning permission for the development subject to the 
planning conditions outlined within the agenda report.

PP 20/48 Schedule of Delegated Decisions 

The Panel was notified of a number of delegated decisions made during the 
period 28 July 2020 to 10 August 2020.

RESOLVED – that the Schedule of Delegated Decisions from 28 July 2020 to 10 
August 2020 be noted.

Page 2



PP 20/49 Development Management Performance Monitoring 

Members received the Development Management Performance figures for the 
first quarter of 2020/21 (1st April 2020 – 30th June 2020) against the National 
Performance Indicators.

Following a 30 second pause to allow for any Member to indicate otherwise, it 
was

RESOLVED – that the Development Management Performance Monitoring 
report be noted and the Planning team be thanked for their hard work.

PP 20/50 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on Wednesday 
16 September 2020 at 2:00pm. This will be a virtual meeting.

The Meeting closed at 3.00 pm 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



ADDENDUM REPORT – PLANNING PANEL 16/09/20 

 

Application Number:   4/19/2200/0O1 

Site:     Land at Midtown Farm, Morass Road, Beckermet  

Proposal:  Outline application for up to 24 dwellings with approval of 

 access (resubmission) 

 

 

Summary of Planning Panel Meeting Held on the 5th August 2020 

The outline application sought to establish the principle of developing this site for 

residential purposes for up to 24 dwellings, with matters relating to layout, scale, 

appearance and landscaping reserved for subsequent approval. Full details of access 

arrangements were provided and considered as part of the application.  

Members were minded to refuse the outline planning permission for this scheme against 

Officer recommendation at the Planning Panel meeting on the 5th August 2020. In 

accordance with the Council’s adopted protocol the application was therefore deferred to 

allow Officers to consider the reasons for refusal set out by Members.  

The refusal reason set out by Members related to the impact of the proposed development 

upon highway safety. This reason is considered below:-  

 

Impact on Highway Safety  

Further to the previous Planning Panel meeting, Officers from the Highway Authority have 

attended a site meeting with local residents. The Highways Officer following this meeting 

has provided clarification and comments to the Local Planning Authority regarding concerns 

raised at the previous Planning Panel meeting by Members.  

S106 Agreement Highway Contribution  

As part of their consultation response to this application, the Highway Authority have 

confirmed that the proposal would not increase the risk of an accident to an unacceptable 

level. However in order to ensure any potential impact of the development are sufficiently 

mitigated the Highway Authority sought a contribution of £16,300.00 towards future traffic 

calming schemes within Beckermet made available for use by the Highway Authority for a 5 

year period.  

Following concerns raised by Members relating to the impact of the proposed development 

upon highway safety the Highway Authority have provided clarification on their position and 

have provided details of how the requested contribution has been arrived at.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



The village of Beckermet currently has limited footways. The Highway Authority have stated 

that traffic calming measures have been considered within the village over a number of 

years with various solutions being proposed, most of which are deemed to be either too 

invasive to the village or would ultimately not be suitable. The applicant has previously 

suggested the creation of a footway to the junction of Mill Lane however the Highway 

Authority did not consider that this will hold a benefit for road safety as it would narrow the 

road and change the character of Beckermet.  

The Highway Authority have confirmed that there is an aspiration to put forward a scheme 

that would allow the village to exist as it does currently without resorting to speed 

humps/cushions through the introduction of a gateway feature and a more defined shared 

surface within the village along with a speed limit reduction to 20mph. This proposal would 

be subject to design and safety audit but it is envisaged that a change in surface texture or 

colour could be used to define the vehicle running lane and pedestrian walkway which 

would give the impression that the carriageway is somewhat narrower than it was through a 

visual change and creating uncertainty leading to a reduction in speed, this would be further 

enforced by the reduction in speed limit to 20mph and a gateway feature at either end of 

the village. The requested contribution of £16,300.00 would be utilised to investigate and 

develop a traffic calming scheme which would then be further funded from the local 

highway budget which would benefit the whole village rather than just an improvement in a 

specific area.  

Safe Walking Routes & Accident Data 

The Highway Authority have also stated that as part of the determination of this application 

there were discussion with the Traffic Team to consider if Morass Road and Mill Lane could 

be considered safe walking routes to the nearby school. The assessment of the suitability 

was done on the 16th Aug 2019 by a suitably qualified traffic officer external to the Flood 

and Development Management team.  

Traffic surveys undertaken in early July 2019, on Mill Lane and Morass Road; for the purpose 

of the assessment, referring only to the data gathered within hours 8-10am, 3-5pm.  Morass 

Road experienced between 90 – 210 vehicle movements per hour, with the higher numbers 

being experienced mid-afternoon coinciding with school finishing times.  Mill Lane 

experienced between 60 – 130 vehicle movements per hour, with the higher amount of 

movements being experienced mid-afternoon coinciding with school finishing times also. 

The guidance suggests that a low traffic flow would be up to 400 vehicles per hour; and 

therefore, it can be argued that the vehicle movements currently existing on Morass Road 

and Mill Lane, Beckermet could constitute as “very light traffic flow”.   

Based on this survey, it was determined by the Highway Authority that Morass Road can be 

determined as a safe walking route, as visibility is good for pedestrians and approaching 

vehicles, allowing adequate time/distance for vehicles to stop. The issues of visibility are 

greater around the junction of Mill Lane where the same level of visibility cannot be 

achieved due to the high walls of neighbouring properties, however vehicle speeds are 

approaching the Give Way lines of the junction, and therefore the Highway Authority have 

Page 6



stated that it can be reasonable to suggest that this creates more opportunity for 

pedestrians / drivers to come into view and act accordingly. 

Accident Data, TRICS & Vehicle Movements 

Information supplied within the Transport Statement for this application details no personal 

injury accidents for the local area since 1st January 2013. This document also provides 

details of the predicted vehicles trip movements using the TRICS database. The Highway 

Authority have confirmed that, based on the predicted movements generated by the new 

development onto Hunter Rise, it is considered that the impact on the local highway 

network would be minor. The Highway Authority therefore determined that despite there 

being an increase in vehicle movement and pedestrian footfall, taking into consideration the 

safe walking route, accident data and predicted vehicle movements the proposed 

development would not increase highway impact or accident risk to an unacceptable level, 

it was therefore determined that the application would be in line with the NPPF and would 

not hold unacceptable highway safety issues. 

Hunter Rise/Morass Road Junction  

During a recent site visit to consider the junction of Hunters Rise, Officers from the Highway 

Authority measured the existing visibility splays which do fall short of what would be 

required for a new access. However as this is an existing access formally adopted under S38 

agreement in 2009, and no complaints in relation to visibility have been raised or no 

personal injury accidents have been submitted since January 2013, it was considered that 

the development would not increase the risk to an unacceptable level. The Highway 

Authority noted that there is an opportunity to further increase visibility looking south by 

reducing the height of the boundary wall which is under the control of the applicant at the 

lower end of the development site fronting Morass Road. This detail could be secured by an 

appropriately worded planning condition.  

 

Benefits of the Proposal  

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 

accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicates otherwise. 

The NPPF is a material consideration.  As the NPPF sets out Government guidance it is 

considered to carry significant weight in the decision making process.  

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF requires the application of the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development to developments relating to the provision of housing, where the 

Local Planning Authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites 

(with the appropriate buffer, as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test 

indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing 

requirement over the previous three years. The Council acknowledged on 9th May 2017 that 

it cannot demonstrate a five year supply of housing sites. 

Page 7



Where a five year supply of deliverable housing sites cannot be demonstrated then 
paragraph 11 of the NPPF is engaged and an application is to be assessed in this context. 

Paragraph 11 sets out that where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies 
are out of date the Local Planning Authority should grant planning permission unless: 

- the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.  
 

The original report presented to Members at the Planning Panel on the 5th August 2020 set 

out a full assessment of the potential impacts and benefits of the proposal. It is your Officers 

view that any impacts of the proposal would not significantly or demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits of the scheme when assessed against the Local Plan, the Interim Housing Policy and 

the NPPF taken as a whole.  

 

Conclusion 

For the reasons set out above Officers maintain their original recommendation that outline 

planning permission should be approved for this development in this case.  

 

Recommendation: 

Member’s authorise delegated authority to the Planning and Place Manager to approve 

outline planning permission for the development subject to:  

- A planning obligation securing the delivery of four of the proposed dwelling as 

intermediate housing to be sold at a discounted rate, and a financial contribution for 

traffic calming measures; and;  

- The planning conditions outlined at the end of the report that was presented to the 

Planning Panel on 05th August 2020 (attached).  

 

 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43

Agenda Item 4b



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65

Agenda Item 5



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING APPEAL DECISION

Lead Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning and Place Manager

To inform Members of a recent appeal decision in respect of 9 The Crofts, St Bees.

Recommendation: That the decision be noted in the context of the Council’s Local 
Plan Policies and also in relation to performance monitoring. 

Resource Implications: Nil

1.0. SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.1. Planning permission was refused under delegated powers (ref: 4/19/2427/0F1) for a 
double storey front extension and a new raised terrace with balustrade on the 14th 
February 2020. This application was refused for the following reason:

“The extension, due to its siting, scale and design exerts an overbearing and 
dominant effect, resulting in a significant detrimental impact on the character of 
the existing residential estate and the overall street scene. The development of 
such a prominent extension would be out of keeping with and would have a 
detrimental impact on the visual amenity of this residential estate. It is also 
considered that the development will have a significant detrimental impact on 
the occupiers of the adjacent property through overlooking, which will result in 
a significant adverse impact on their residential amenity. Consequently, the 
development is considered to be contrary to policies ST1, DM10, DM12 and 
DM18 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 – 2028, and section 12 of the NPPF.”

1.2. An appeal, which has been lodged against the refusal of planning permission, has 
now been dismissed. 

1.3. In considering this case the Inspector noted that the main issues raised by the appeal 
are the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the 
area, and whether the proposal would safeguard the living conditions of the 
neighbouring occupiers of No.7 The Crofts, having regard to privacy. 

1.4. Character and Appearance 
The Inspector notes that the application site is located at a prominent point within 
the street at a junction between the main access road through the development and 
a short cul-de-sac, with the estate situated on a steep slope. The Inspector further 
notes that a key part of the character of the development is of dwellings being set 
back from the road frontage behind driveways or gardens, which contributes 
positively to the character and appearance of the locality. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 6



1.5. The Inspector stated that the proposed two storey extension would significantly 
erode the spaciousness and freedom from development currently proposed by the 
front garden to the appeal property and would introduce a substantial scale of 
development. The proposed extension was therefore considered by the Inspector to 
be a substantial addition to the dwelling protruding into the streetscene. The use of 
timber cladding is considered to further emphasis the prominence and adverse 
visual impact of the proposal in the context of the area. 

1.6. The Inspector therefore concluded that the proposed extension would result in an 
adverse effect on the character and appearance of the area, which would conflict 
with Policies ST1, DM10 and DM18 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028.

1.7. Living Conditions
The proposal would also introduce a raised terrace and balustrade adjacent to the 
new extension within the rear garden, as well as bi-folding doors. The Inspector 
notes the relationship with No. 7 The Crofts, and in particular the difference in 
elevation levels. However the Inspector states that the single first floor window in 
the side elevation of No 7 is offset from the proposed terrace and extension and 
despite the difference in levels and observed proximity, he does not agree with the 
Councils view that the proposal would have the contended harm with regard to loss 
of privacy. 

1.8. The Inspector therefore concludes that the proposal would safeguard the living 
conditions of the neighbouring occupiers of No. 7, having regard to privacy, and 
would therefore not be conflict with Policies ST1, DM10, DM12 and DM18 of the 
Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028.

1.9. Conclusion
Whilst the Inspector had regard to the contended improvements to the internal 
function of the dwelling from the extension and found the relationship with 
neighbouring occupiers at No. 7 to be acceptable, the adverse effect on the 
character and appearance of the area justifies the decision to dismiss the appeal.

Contact Officer: Christie Burns – Planning Officer – Development Management 

Background Papers: A copy of the Inspector’s decision letter is appended. 

Page 80



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 4 August 2020 

by M Seaton DipTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date:  7 August 2020 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Z0923/D/20/3248074 

9 The Crofts, St. Bees, CA27 0BH 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr David Brown against the decision of Copeland Borough 

Council. 
• The application Ref 4/19/2427/0F1, dated 4 December 2019, was refused by notice 

dated 14 February 2020. 
• The development proposed is a double storey extension to the front and new raised 

terrace with balustrade. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issues 

2. The main issues are; 

 

• the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of 
the area; and,  

 

• whether the proposal would safeguard the living conditions of the 
neighbouring occupiers of No. 7 The Crofts, having regard to privacy. 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

3. The appeal site is located at a prominent point within the street scene at a 

junction between the main access road running through the development and a 
short cul-de-sac. The wider residential development is situated on a 

comparatively steep slope, with neighbouring dwellings to the north-west set at 

a considerably lower level. 

4. I observed a key part of the character of the wider development is of dwellings 

being set back from the road frontage behind driveways or gardens, albeit that 
there is a certain degree of variation in the extent of any setback with other 

features including hedgerows, planting and low boundary walls or fences also 

present, including fencing to the rear garden on the appeal site. However, the 

appeal property and Nos. 1-7 The Crofts exhibit a consistency in terms of the 
overall extent and spaciousness of setback and absence of any substantial 

scale of development. I find this contributes positively to the character and 

appearance of the locality.  

Page 81

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Z0923/D/20/3248074 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

5. The proposed two-storey extension would significantly erode the spaciousness 

and freedom from development currently provided by the front garden to the 

appeal property and would introduce a substantial scale of development in its 
stead. Whilst I recognise that there would be a certain amount of garden 

remaining once the development was completed, albeit that it’s contribution to 

openness would in part be limited due to proposed fencing, the proposal would 

appear as a substantial addition protruding within the street scene. Despite the 
justified incorporation of design cues from the host dwelling, the extension 

would appear as a prominent addition to the dwelling within the street scene, 

with the use of timber cladding further emphasising the prominence and 
adverse visual impact of the proposal in the context of the area. 

6. Therefore, I conclude that the proposed extension would result in an adverse 

effect on the character and appearance of the area. This would conflict with 

Policies ST1, DM10 and DM18 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028: Core 

Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD (the LP). These policies 
seek to ensure that development is of a high standard of design, and retains 

and enhances locally distinctive places by responding positively to the 

character of the site and the immediate and wider setting through appropriate 

scale and massing of residential buildings and extensions, and careful selection 
and use of building materials.   

Living conditions 

7. The proposal would also introduce a raised terrace and balustrade adjacent to 

the new extension within the rear garden, as well as bi-folding doors. In this 

regard I have noted the relationship with No. 7 The Crofts (No. 7) and in 

particular the differences in elevational levels between the proposal and the 
adjoining dwelling, as well as the proximity of a conservatory to the rear of  

No. 11 The Crofts. However, whilst I observed the presence of a single first 

floor window in the side elevation of No. 7, this window is considerably offset 

from the proposed terrace and extension and despite the difference in levels 
and observed proximity, I do not agree with the Council that the proposal 

would have the contended harm with regards to loss of privacy. 

8. I therefore conclude that the proposal would safeguard the living conditions of 

the neighbouring occupiers of No. 7, having regard to privacy. In this respect, 

there would not be conflict with Policies ST1, DM10, DM12 and DM18 of the LP, 
which seek to ensure that development safeguards good levels of general and 

residential amenity, maintains standards for residential development, and 

would not create potential privacy or overlooking problems for the residents of 
adjacent dwellings.  

Conclusion 

9. Whilst I have had regard to the contended improvements to the internal 
function of the dwelling from the extension, and have found the relationship 

with neighbouring occupiers at No. 7 to be acceptable, the adverse effect on 

the character and appearance of the area justifies the decision to dismiss the 

appeal. 

Martin Seaton 

INSPECTOR 

Page 82

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 August 2020
	4a Application 4/19/2200/0O1 - Land at Midtown Farm, Morass Road, Beckermet
	4-19-2200-0O1 Planning Panel Report

	4b Application 4/20/2123/0B1 - Park House Farm Wind Farm, Lowca, Whitehaven
	5 Schedule of Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeal Decision
	3248074-Appeal Decision


